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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH. EDUCATION, AND %“VELFARE
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
ROCKVILLL, MD. a2

W\ b January 10, 1977

OFFICZ OF THE
GENMERA . C2UNSEL

Ecnorzble Sameel K. Skinner
United States Attorney
Northem District of Illinois
219 South Dearborna Street |
Pocm 1500 South

Chicago, Illinois 60604

Dear Mr. Skinner:

-~ ..

Ve recuest that your office convene a Grand Jury investigation into
agparent violaticns of the Fedsral Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21
U.S.C. 331(e), and the False Reports to the Covernment Act, 18 U.S.C.
1001, by G.- D. Seazle and Corpany and three of its responsible officers
for treir willful anéd kncwing failure to wake reports ¢o the Food and o
Drug 2éministraticn reguired by the Act, 21 U.S.C. 355(i), and fer
cencealing material facts and meking false statements in reports of
animzl studies conducted to establish the safety of the drug Aldactone
and the food additive Aspartare. Concealing materi=l facts relative to
the Aldactone stucév also resulted in that drug beirs mistranded within
the meaning of 21 U.S.C. 352(a) and 321(n), in violation of 21 U.s.C.
331(a). .

I
The Statutory/Reculation Schere

A. Investigational Naw Drucs. The Food and Drug EZministration has
responsibility for assuring that drugs marketed in this country are
safe for their intended uses and are accurztaly lakeled. The Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act pronibits the marketirs of any "new drug®
in interstate ccmmerce unless a new drug epplicaticn (NDA) filed pursuant
to 21 U.S.C. 355 ccataining substantial evidence of the safety and
effectiveness of the &rug has Deen eroroved by the FoOA. Befcre an NDA
is approved for anv particular use of a'drug, that divg may lawlfully
be used only for investigational tests, first in amimals and therealter
in humens.  This testing is permitted only in accor=ance with 21 C.S.C.
355(i) and requlations pramilgated theseunder.
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The original statutory basis for rsgulating the investicational use of
new drugs was provided in 1938 by the kasic Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosetic Act. The Lruvg 2mencrents of 1962 authorized the FDA to
establish by regulation new reporting recuirements to assure that
inforration about significant hazards, conirzirndications, side effects
ard adverse or unusual reactions asscciated with the investigational
use of new drugs is disseminated rapidly. These regulations specify
the form, content, and timeliress for the sutmissicn of such reports.
Failure to camply with such requirsments is prohibited.umder the Act,

21 u.s.C. 331(e)

A rajor purpose of the investicationa2l dmuz reculaticns, 21 CFR Part
312, is to safegu=rd human subjects during the investigeticnal phase . o
of drug develomment. Accer u.ngly the mc:1.1l.e.~_i<z~.s reguire thzt prior to the
- administration of e:uy investicationzl drug to huran subjects, the spansor
of the drug rmust file with the FT2 a rotice of clained mvest:.gatm'xal
e.x._rz;n_:.on for a new cn.g (D\D) , which contains acdecuate information about
;::ac]_ vical (a:*._ral) investigaticns of ths drug and any studies and other
experience fran which the sponsor has conclided that it is reascnably

s2fe to initiate clinical (humen) t..sq:g A czreful evaluzticon of the
anira) toxicity and phazracological studies provides scme assurance of
the expected eifects when the drug is aéninistered to hmans. If the
datz submitted in an IND justify the conclusion that the drug ray safely
be tested in hurans, the FDA permits the sponscr to ship the drug to
investigatars. It is nct wncamen, as is the case with Aldactone, that
a drug may have an agproved NDA Ior certain usas while simultanecusly
being tested in am:als and/cr himans for other uses under an DD.

Because the IND procecdures prcovice a limited ev=pticn for the distribution
of 2 ¢rug which has not as yet bean shuwn to be safe and/or effective by
acscezte and well-controlled clinicz2) investications, the reculations
recuire the sponsor to closely monitor the progress of pre-xra.:’-ceting
mvestigations Tne regulations provide that progress resorts of such
investigaticons be sulmitted to the FDA at reasonzble intervals, not to
exceed cne year. 21 CGR 312.1(2)(3). In acdition, the ref'ulatlons reguire
that a sponsor shall "promptly investicate" and report to the FDA "any

.. firdings associated with use of a érug that may succest significant hazards,.
contraindications, side effects or precauticns ;e.rt-_.nen" to the safety of
the drug". 1If such a finding is "alamming", it swst be reccrted “immediately'
and clinical investigation discontinvsd cr modified until the finding is
adecuately evaluated and a decision is reached that it is safe to proceed.
21 CZR 312.1(a) (6).

307



Page 3 - Honorable Saruel K. Skinner

The results of drug testing are criticzl not only to establish the .

basic safety and effectiveness of tre product, but also to' identify
possible sice effects, contraindicaticas, and the nesd for special
warnings, all of which must be incluced in the drug labeling. The
sponsor of every new drug sutmits proposed labeling for FDA approval

at the time of initial marketing and thereafter to reflect new information
_resulting from its use. :

B.' Food Additive Petitions.- The Act also provides for FDA approvel of - .
food additives. Agprovel of an additive is codified in a regulation
prescribing conditions under which the additive may be safely used.

The regulation is pramilgated solely on the basis of a menufacturer's
petiticn, filed pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 348(b), vhich contains reports of
studies establishing the safety of the aéditive. As with investigational
érugs, the FDA does not perZorm safety tests on food acdditives; it must

rely @won the data developed by the petiticner. Stxxdies swoorting a-
petition are ordinarily perforred cnly on animals; buran testing is uncommn.

Tn2 major purpose of the food additive provisicns, added to the Ast in
1958, is to prevent the unrestricted rarketing and consurption in humen
food of chemicals without reasonable proof that these chemicals will rot
adversely affect ran, either immediat=ly, over a life-time or in the next
gensration. '

C. Monitoring Test Integritv. Reports of studies submitted to the FDA
as part of INDs or NOs and Iced additive petiticns must be conplete,
balanced and truthful if the 2gency is to fullill its duty of assuring
that these products ars safe and that rnew érugs cantain ecourate labeling
basad cn the result of preclinical ané clinical testing.

The FDA has nct routinely rcnitored the conduct of animal test results
sutmitted in support of either new drugs or food additive petitions.

The reliahility of the testing is normally checked by FDA review of the
sponsor's reports of the underlying rew data. If necessary, the FDA may
review the undsrlying raw data itself in the possession of the sponsor.

- Tne FDA may- also select manufacturers or preclinical testing lakoratories -
for routine surveillance inspections. When there is reason to believe that
there are irregularities or discrepancies in the conduct of tests or the
reporting of test data,’ the FDA may conduct a cmpliance inspection in
orcer to evaluate the testing facilities, practices, and record keeping
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procedures to resolve any agparent discrepancy between the raw data
an2 the report or to determmine the truthfulness of data presented in

the report.

Recent FDA experiences have identified significant problems in the manner
in which many preclinical laborztery studies are performed. Deficiencies

in the quality and integrity of reported data have prompted the Cammissicner
of Fcod and Drugs to establish & bioresearch menitering program, and to

- propose. the pramulgation of gocd laboratory practices regqulations which will
delineate proper procedures for cocnéucting preclinical labecratory stuedies.
Congress has increased rDA's budzet for the fiscal year 1977 .by $16.6
million specificelly to help achisve the goals of the new program.

II . . . -
‘The Searle Investigaticn L

The genesis of the investigation of studies cenducted by and -for G. D.
Ssarle was the FDA's discovery in 1972 of certain discrepancies in

Searle data submitted in sugport of a large-selling anti-infective

drug Flagyl. FDA review of the cata was iniciated because incspendent
investigators had reported evidance that Flagyl was a carcinogen (an
agent capable of producing cancer). Searle's own lcng-term toxicity
study, submitted in 1970, had not cenclucded that Flagyl wes a carcinogen.
In 2pril 1974, Searle submitted rors studies cn the issue of Flagyl's
carcincgenicity and also sumitted corrections to the data Scm its
ariginal lang-term study. These corzected data raised furthner questions,
resulting in FDA inspections initiated at Searles begimning in May 1974
and proceeding intermittently wmtil the first of July 1975. Tnese initial
inspections failed to satisfactorily resoive guesticns of discrepancies and
inadecruacies in Searle precliniczl testing and reccrting of test results.

On July 23, 1975, Dr. Alexancder M. Scmidt, then the Coamissicner of Food
and Drugs, established a special interna] Task Farce to review the conduct
of animal experiments conducted by and far G. D. Se=rle and report to him. -
Inspections were conducted at -Searle ard at three independent laboratories, -
Hazelton Laboratories, Viemna, Virginia, The Wisconsin Regional Primate
-Center, Madison, Wisconsin, and Microscory fer Bialegical Resesrch, Albeny, -
New York, which had corducted or zarticipated in the evaluzation of aniwal
studies for Searle.
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The Task Force reviewed inspection regorts covering 25 separate studies

an seven different products, toa-zl:.ng agproxirately 500 pages plus 15,000
exhibits. PBEased on this m...onrat.wn, data ongn_nally suomitted by Searle,
the scientific evaluation of animal tissue slides and other raw data, the
Task Force issued its report to the Comissicrer an March 24, 1976. A copy
of the Task Force report was forwarced to the Ccnsumer Affairs Section, -
Antitrust Division, Department of Justice, ard to youx office in April.
2mong other observations, the Task Force questioned Searle's handling of
data applicable to the drug Aldactme e.nd .J*e *-e::ort.:_ng of stx.d.\.es on tha’
food acditive Aspartams.

The Task Force report was provicad to Searle and the fimm requested an”
cprortinity to submit a written reply and to meet with the Conmissicner
to reszand to the conclusions and reccmendaticns of the Task Force.
The meeting was held on Mey 18; Searle summitisd its written reply to

th2 Task Forcé report on May 21. I am anclcsmg 2 copy of the trenscript .-

" of the May 18 meeting and the written reply of Searle to the Task Ferce ,
recort (Exs. la, 1b). At the meeting, Searle recuestsd an opportinity to make
firther written reply to two memaranca by FDA P2 thologist M. Ré-ian Gross, a
Tasx Force cansultant who had reviewed rmuch of the Searle preclinical testing
dat_ This Searle reply was sen" to tne Agency cn Jume 21, 1976.

III
Inforwal Administrative Esaring
After review in my office and in the office of the Associate Camissioner
for Camliance of all the material relating to this matter, on Septe.'nber 3,

1976, the Agency issuad, pursuant to 21 U. s.C. 33::La \ot:.ce of Hean.nc to
G. D. Searle and Co=anv, an FATETIT : e~

&—,,_W for a{.aafen violazicns of t..,a rece Food, Drug,
and Cosmetic ang related violations of 18 U.S.C. 1001 conceming Aldactene

ard Asgcartame. The hearing, originally screculed for September 21, 1976, wes
postoaned at the request of Searle until Octcber 20. 2An amenced Notice of -
Baanrg,, dated Septetdoer 15, 1976, was issued to corr=ct an inadvertent
anission from the earlier notice and to verify Octobexr 20 as the hearing :
date. A copy of the Notice of Hearing was forwe=led to the Consurer Affairs

Sect.:.cn and to Assistant Um.ted Sx:a.es Attorney Fred Branc.mg o; your ofnce..

At the C)ctobe. hearing, Sea.rle sx.:mu 24 lenctfw wn..-an replies to the 305 Not
conies of these are enclosed (Exs. 2a-2e). In acdition, Searle reiterated
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a request for the Agency's investigaticnal Zfile covering the apparent
violatiaons which were the subject of the hearing. This reguest wes denied,
as was an earlier Searle request for “"discoverv" which referenced the
Jencks Act, the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and Bracdvy v. Maryland.
Copies of corresponcdence concerring these reguests have been provided to
tha Consumer Affairs Section and Mr. Branding.

As you know, preliminary reports of discreparcies in preclinical testing
conducted by and for Searle were partially responsible for hearings on

- d-ug-related reseaxch held bafores the Senate Stxcammittee ‘an Health of the
Camittee on lLabor and Public Welfare and the Subcc—mitise cn Aéministrative
Practices and Procedures of the Carmittes on the Juliciary both chaired by
Senator Edward Kennedy on July 10, 1975. Subsequent testimeny updating the
investigation and the positions of the FDA and Searle were taken befcv-e the
joint subcamittess on Janusry 20 ard 2zril 8, 1976. ‘

I‘] . . .. . ° - -
Failure to Sulmit Safet Data cn Ald..—.ctmn

A. The Drug. Alcactone is a new drug rmarketed by Searle pursuant to NDA
12-151." Tne érug was first epproved in 1960 for use as a diuretic (an
Agent that increacses the secretica of urine) fcr congastive heart failure
and for hyperaléostercnism, a re_aqvaly rars but savere disoréer of the
adrenal corisx often resulting in a razked increase in hign blood pressure.
By 1974, Aldactcne and a related drug u-~l~_zi.:~c the szme active ingredient,
Ald:ctazide, constituted ecomyvitately ?."_'SJC‘ Searle's total phamraceutical
sales, acoroximately[EEiFE=mmah year. Curent sales are regorted to be

In 1963, Searle svbmitted DD 714 to conduct s"\.d;&c. to develop data for the
vse of Aldactone in massive coses in ‘tne t.raa nt of myasthenia gravis
(serious muscular parelysis). In 1969, Searle =:renc'._d its IND to cover
-testing of Aldactcne for severe conc-astive heart fzilure at Cosage levels
rmach higher t.'r:an those approved in tnz2 NDA.

B. The MER ("Mawmo") Resort. In 1970 Searle dssiched two 78~week toxicitv
studies in the rat on Aldactane, pne to supocrt the lcng—te.nn USe. O the. CIug
“at doszge levels cupvm NDA and the other £n svwscrt hicher dose
levels in ths treatment of severs cormw ‘Iha first stwly,
Jater ex=ended to 104 weeks in curaticn, was conductad by Hazelton Leberatori
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Vienna, Virginia; the second was perfoz:reo by Searle in its own labaratories
The study conducted at Searle begen in August 1970 and rats were sacrmced
and necropsied (autons:.ed) duzing Februvary and March 1972.

In Noverber. 1972, consistent w:.th prior prectices, Searle subtmitted the
slidss of sectians of organ tissues of the rats fram the study it had
performed to an outsiéa ccnsultant patholocist for exzmination. Thne
slides were _evamined bv Dr. Jaccusline “=t_ro a boaxrd certified Da‘:.holcg:.st,

at Micropsy for Biological Research, Ltd., Alteny, Kew York (I :
of her "readings" -~ the MR report — was sumitted to Searle on ba.rch 21,
1973. In a letter to MAR dated June 1, 1973, Dr. Gt 3 acknowles
receipt of the report which "loo}s just fine" (.

In the sumrary of the MR report, Dr. Mawo st.:uai t"‘.:t 1'1c>lc:c:y review

the data su"ges*‘.:sfI a2 grow relationsh 1D, re;:u:g a c’:ug—*elated or drug-induac
re.lat.xor*s}no, with tunars (scencmas) ¢f the ‘testes and liver. She also notet
a significant m=bter of thyroid tumers and nen-tumorous thyroid lesions whick
she called "adenamztous goiter". Dr. Mazwro reccmerded that these findings
be measured for statistical significance. A statistical review of pathology
findings is .m::ort._nt since an absoluts cause-and-effect relaticaship usually
canrot be established in excerirent2l biolocy. Therefore, an asscciation
between an agent anéd an effect is determirad as a rrobability, If the incicer
of a toxic response, such as a lesicn, is Zcuné =morg animals treated with tr
agent under study to a significant cegres greztar than in animels not exposad
to the agent, the estzblisnhzd practice is to rzce=d the agent as respons:.ble
for that toxic reacticn. Where, as here, the tokic reaction is the develoge
of timmors, it is lik=ly to result in rsstrictive l_be.'u.ng imrzosed by FLA or
even revocation of naxntnrg approval. )

C. Searle's Reacticn to the MER Remort. In ezxly Awvgust 1973, a statistical
significant relaticnship betseen the gcminist—ation of Aldactcne and liver an
testicular tumors, as well as thyroid tisors, wes confimed by Searle's
Mathematics-Statistics Department kased on t.h.e MER reort. 'ﬂ'e*eafter, at
the reguest of: = 5

were reviewed by a.chen "'ec._n._ly h_rcc Sa..rle :a‘-‘ﬁ.ologlst Dr. Rudolf Stejsl\a.l
Ee concluded that Dr. Mauro's analyses were "incorrect” and thus "unreliable"
since certain slices which she had diagnosed-zs revealing kenign tumors
(adencmas) were, in his opinion, lesser lasicns mybezplasz.a) and that

other slicdas that she had dizgnosed azs being benign tumors were in fact
malignant tumors. On the basis of Dr. Stejska2l's limited review of the
liver slides, Searle did not submit the MER report to the FDA.
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In 2oril or Mzy 1974, Dr. Stejskal review=d rore of tr2 slides which hagd
been analyzed in the MBR report.” Tais'time, he felt N2t the slides
revealed more thyroid tumors than had been recorted k- Dz, Madro. Thus, |
while having conclided that her characterizaticn of t52 liver slides was
too extreme, he also found that her characterization cf the thryoid lesions
was too restrained (Ex. 4). In various interviess wi:h FDA persannel and
in written suknissions to the 2gency, Dr. Stejsk2l has never cammented an
the MBR diagnosis of testicular turors which, according to Searle's
Mathematics-Statistics Departrent, were, as Dr. Mauro suggested, drug-
related and statistically significant. S o

In August 1974 — sixteen renths after it received the &R repart —— Searle
"sent the same slides examined by Dr. Mawwo, and approximately 1,000 additiona]
slicdes fram the same stidy, to another contract rathologist, Dr. Donald M.
Willigan. His report was received by Searle in Decerser 1974. It reveals

2 statistically significant drug-related increzss in titors of the thyreid
and testes, as did the M3R report, but rost irportarnt to Sezrle, not tumrs
of the liver. Th2 concewi-at Ssarls svar ¥ha liver pethelogy of the Mp2
report rust have been particularly acute; wmdousizdly the fiom recognizsqg
that TS OIIOnatich Would fEVE to be inciuded in the Aldactone labeling,
with a probable decrease in sales. The producticn of tuors in the testes
-and thyroid of the test animals, at statistically sicnificant levels, must
2lso have been unwelcome news but, insofar as 2léactcae is felt to be active
in these endocrine glands, Searle wes prepared to arcue that these turors
would be less likely to concern the FDA and the prescribing physician. We
disagree with Searle's discounting the tumors of endocrine glands. See infra
at 14. However, the liver findings were mcr2 alazming because there was no
theory upon which they could be discounted. Thus, wniike the MER repors,

ne Willigan report was submitted to FDA praptly uren receipt at Searle.

Imediately after the first Congressicnal hearincs and the Camissioner's
ESTEotIirent OF the Task Force, and immadiztely pricr o the initiatien of
irspecticns by the FTA Task Force, which Searle hzd every reasen to believe
would irclude studies on Aldactone, Searle finally disclosed the M3R reooot
to the FDA in July 1875, sare 27 montis aro=" 1c [2Q Deen receivay,

D. Violaticn of 21 U.S.C. 331(e) and 18 U.S.C. 1001. . The FDA regards the

MR repcrt as contzining “alarming firdings", nzwely, statistically significant
drug-related tumors of the liver and also of the thyroid and the testes .
especially given the wide use of the drug in hurans: 2Accordingly, Searle

was recuired to repcrt these findings to the Agency "immediately" pursuznt

to 21 COFR 312.1(a) (6). If cre were to conclude that these findings were oot

313
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"alaming”, they unquestionably were of the type that suggested significant
- hazards, contraindicaticns, effects and precautions pertinent to the safety’
of the drug and therefore should have been summitted to the Agency "prarotly
as also required by 21 CFR 312.1(a) (6). Even if cre took the view most
favorable to Searle that these findings vere neither alarming nor suggastive
of significant precautions, they were sicnificant and thus were required to
be submitted to the Agency at least within che year of receipt by Searle.
21 CFR 312.1(2) (S). .

The primary purpose of the recuirement that test findings be summitited to th
FDA pramotly is to permit the Agsncy to assess for itself whether the . .
investigationzl exerption should be rodified or revoked. A menufactier

is not entitled to withhold damacing information in the hope that ultimately
it might be proved incorrect. Mereover, the regulations do not preclice a
ramfacturer fum filing expert criticisn aleng with or follewing the
.reported study. In short, uncer any view of tha facts, Searle was not
entitled to discomt the entire MR rezort cn tre basis of Dr. Stejskal's
review of sane of the slides for only or2 of the tissue types. Moreover,
to give great weight to Dr. Stejskal's analyses is to conclude that in May
1974 Searle had reason to believe, based wen his subseguent review of more
of the slicdes, that administratica of Aldactone in the study had cauvsed even
2 greater nurber of thyroid tuncrs than resortsd by Dr. Mauro.

21 U.S.C. 331(e) prohibits the failure to make any report reguired by

. regqulations under the IND provisions of the Act. Th2 éecisica not to
sutmit the MBR report was a conscicus cne ard thus cur Notice of Hearing
chargad this violaticn as an intentionzl act under the felony rprovisicns
of the Act, 21 U.S.C. 333(b). Failurs to submit the MSR report also
censtitutes concealment of a raterial fact, a-violaticn of 18 U.S.C. 1001.

E. labeling of Rléactone: Violaticn of 21 U.S.C. 331(a). Wnen in Mzrch
1975 the FDA received fram Searle the rsport of Dr. Willigan which confirmed
the statistically significant incidences of thyroid and testes turcrs reporie
to Sezrle two years earlier by Lr. Mzuro, the Acency became concerned that
the labeling for 2ldactone was inadecuata. On June 10, 1975, it cconvened
the Gazgdio-2en3] 2dvisorv Commitiee, 2 grown.0f NGT-:DA experts, to.review
the éata then known on Aldactcn=. Even prior to the disclesure of the MSR
. report in July 1975, and tased uzcn the result of the tissue slide examinatic
by Dr. Willican and the analysis at FDA's request oI certain liver ‘slicdes by
Dr. Jchn Boitnott, a pathologist at Jchns Eorkins University, the 2dvisory
Camittee concluded that while the toxicological studies were incomplete
showed "definits and significant increzses in neoplasia (tiors) of the
thyroid gland, testes and possibly breasts and liver. They certainly wasrant
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a waz:nirg to the medical professicn ard a curtailrent in the recommendations
for use." 2. co—rof the Comittee's recort is enclesed {(EX. 5). Aldactone
has now been n relareled consistent Withn The CSiiiiiee'S Views.

In view of the similar statisticelly significant thwroid and testes twmor
findincs in the IM=R ard Willigan reports, ard the £ndings of liver lesions
by both pathologists, we believe Searle's failure to sutmit the MER report
resulted in violaticn of 21 U.S.C. 33l(a) for czusing the shimment in :
interstate camercte of Alcdactora witich was misbrandad within the meaning
of 21 U.S.C. 352(a) and 321(n) in that its le=eling did not reveal the
potential of the drug to cause turcrs, a potential disclosed by the MER
report. 2As you can see, the Advisory Cormittes's canclusion also suzoorts
FDa's view that the findings in the }MER repo.t were "alarming”.

v

Analysis of Searle's Eolanztions
for Failure to Sukmit the MSR Rsport

The administrative process, including the special Task Force and the 305
Notice and hearing, has been extensive; ruch cf the dialocue between Searle
an2 the FDA involves cooplex issves. The following portion of this letter,
as well as parzllel discussions of apserent violaticms involving Aspertare,
must necessarily be specific in order to cororenansively and acaurately
reflect the context of this case. Regrett=bly, the e.ncth of this letter

bespeaks ocur gozl.

Sea-lé's explanatian for its failure to suimit t:e 23R report, set forth

in varioces docurents, is best s:r..r*.zed in the firm's respense to the
Notice of Eearing which was stbmitted the FDA an Oc:obe.r 20, 1976. Withou

atterpting to provide at this time a po:.nt-by—pom.. criticque of the Searle
stamission, comment wan the main recurrent themes provided in Searle’s
defznse ray be useiul.

1, From the beginning, Searle has re*.auec.ly tzken thz position that the

M=R report was "proven” by its own pathologist to ke "incorfect" and thus

Searle was wndar no cbl;.gat.lcn to sumit it to the C-ove_:ment.
[

Searle's contention th_.‘- Dr. Mau:o s pa H.ology *esul.s were e hable

must be evaluatsg in light of the fact that pathology is a judomental

discipline, Proliferative lesicns of the liver cells can be subclassified

accorcing to the rarticular nature of the proliferztien. A diffvse

0
e
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increase in hepatocellular elements is usually termed “diffuse hyperplasia®
or simply, "hyperplasia“. Vhen such proliferation is not diffuse byt rathe
a spotty distribution thrcushout the tissues with islands or zones of
proliferating cells, the temm "nedular hycerplasia® is utilized. When such
nccules of hyperplasia contain eells which the pathologist deems as having
been permanently altered or "transformed" into neoplastic or tumpr cells,
the tem "neoplastic nocdule” jis epolied; this is taken to Iepresent a growo
of proliferating cells which have "crossed the boundary” on the way to .
becoming a liver tizor. Varicus Fathologists utilize other recognized -
terrs such as "adencma" to signify a benién liver tTmor. A tissus slids.
characterized by cr= Fathologist as an "zéencma" would also meet the criter;
for "necplastic nodule". Tre mest extreme form of cellular Proliferative
stace, the malignant timr variety, is camcnly terwed "hepatocellnlar
carcincma”. : o , , L

What is important, however, is that all these vericus terms represent a
series of characterizaticns of Stzges of the proliferative process which
can be viewed as a continum. It is entirely possible that two pathologists
ray ex=mine a given lesicn andg characterize it sonedas differently. Tnis
Goes rot necessa~ily mezn that ore is "right" and the cther is "wrong”,
Trerefore, one rust exzmine characte-i zations of liver alterations in a

set of animals and ask whether a Fathegenic process, swch as a proliferative
change, is evicdent. : .

Accardingly, it is'preper to focus on the similarities among pathologists
rather than emnhasize ths diffarences &eng then.  kXen Dr.. Mauro refers
to "adencmas" and Drs. Stejskal and Willigan refererce "ncdular hyperslasia®
and Dr. Pobert Squire, z cancer expert at the Naticmal Institutes of Fealth
who reviewed same of the liver slides s+ the request of the FDA Task Ferce,
talks about "pecplastic nodule”, each on2 is calling attention tp a
rroliferative change in the liver. Cna T2y grafe such a proliferatien
along the continuum or by differsnt phrases from another one, but basically
they imply the same problem. The proclivity of experts to use different
terms in liver pathology was recently dmonsirated at a workshep at the
National Cancer Institute published in "Carcer Fesearch”, Vol. 35, Mov.
1975, coov enclosed (Ex. 6). L L.

Searle also alleges "extrsme variztion and contraindications in diagnosis™ -
betwesn Drs. Stejskal ard Willigem o the crie hand and Dr. Matro en-the othar,
FDA believes that the differences in dlagroses were not extreme ang reflect
merely the condinuum of diagrnostic eveluations of the sams class thzt z-e
well recognized in the field of Fathology.
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2. . Searle argues that the DD regulaticns presicpose that the data which
rust be submitted rust be accurzte and reliable. 305 Reply, Fages 10, 15,
21 R 312.1(a) (6) refers only to “"findings" which are significant or
2larning. 2Accuracy is rot used as a standard precisely becausa such
findirgs at this prelinminary stage ray, in many cases, be unde=mined.

By ccontrast, the requirement to sumit progress reports within a year © .-
Coas state that they be "accurate”, reflectinc the Acancy expectation

that by then any discregancies will have been resolved.

Searle argues that the zpplicable statutz and raculations éo rot require
recorts of 21l animal studiss condirted Curing t52 ccurse of clinical
investigations but only repcrts of testing cn himans and of these animal
tests conducted belore human testing is initizted. In additicn, Searle
contends that the IND rejulaticns zre wnreascnzbly arbiquous. 305 Reply,
£ages 16-21. Thess argunsnts are without rme—iz. . S
In the intevest ol protecting patients taking experimental drugs, the
statute avthorizes rsgulations rsguiring the reporting of anizal tests
Pelore tests on himans are allowed. However, the regulations also parmit
so-called Phase I ard Phase II clinical (human) t-ials to procsed befere
all the rreclinical (anim2l) wozk is coacluszd. Accordingly, it is not
vieoTen that long-term animal studiss, such 25 the 78-weak Alcactone
stuly, are undertaken concurrently with initiz) khuman testing. Item 102
of the form for the "Notice of Claired Investiceticnzl Exerpticn for New
Drugs" notes that these first two rhases "may cverlap and, when indicatsd,
rey recuire acditianzl animal catz2 before theses phases may be completed
or Phase III may be undartaken". 21 GR 312.1(g)(2). The regulatians
Terefore cntemplate additicnal animal studies .éuring testing in hens.

Searle also se=ms to rely on the phrase "such investicetianal use” in
subsecticn 3 of the IND statutory provision, arguing +that this refers

to human test results only. This is incorrect. The results referred

£ in subsection 3 ars those, as the stztute cces on to state, "as the
Secretary [by delegeticn, the Commissioner] finés will enable him to
evaluate the safety and effectiveness of such drug in the event of the
#1ing of [a new drug application]”. Thus, reports st be sukmittad to
the Commissioner to permit him to determine vhether the subsequent new 3
drug applicaticn will be arproved or @enied. 21 U.S:C. 355(b) ‘providss’ -
trat NDAs rust contzin full reports of "investiceticns" which have besn
recde to show wiathar or-not a drug is safe for use, There is no distsinc-ion
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between clinical and preclinical investigations; the statutory phr:ase irclid
both. Indeed, a new drug application may not be approved unless “substantia
evicderce" is submitted in suport of the safety and effectiveness of the éru
Substantial evidance is defined in the Act, 21 U.S.C. 355(d), as evidence
c::nsishing of "ad=-cuate and well controlled investigations, includirng
clinical invest gat::.c*xs". Omc»\_sly, the Act presucooses that reports

will be submitted of preclinical investigations, otherwise the specific
reference to "clinical J.nves‘"'"'-‘-* ons" would ke rea:unglas. :

Searle arcues trat the use of the term "invastizatezs™ in the resulations
n....essa.rily means investigators involved in clinical investigaticn. This
is not true and the regulations ¢o not use that cnraseology If anything,
the regulations make clear that where cliniral inves .J.gaucns are maant
to ke S':P"..J..led trat phrase is used,

Searle further argues that the MSR'repcrt caarct be considered a "f:.nm_ng
wmcer the regulaticns identified by the charge. Thsre can be no question
that the read.mcs of a z:at.‘*.oloms- of tissus slidss are "findings" in
pracl.uuc..l tests; the results of an entire stucy are usually stated in
terms of the tissu2 slice pathology. If anytinng, the use of the word
"n.rr’._'_ng " in thes regculations sucgests that informaticn must be submitted
to the Agency whather or not it can be ccnsidersd, of itself, a completsd
or final "report".

3. Sezarle notes that the 78-w=ek rat study in cuestion used mech higher
dose levels than would be the usu2l himan ca:.ly "dose and thus the tumor
findincs were reither alarming nor even significant in terms of safety.

305 Reply, page 1. Most investiczticnal toxicity s uiles in anirals
involva massive dose¥ oI w2 GILT SeliC cesizas

Sm—— S

Trie reascn for the use of large doses of a drug in test animalg is that such
eSS == CcSSIGn=C D icentify toXic Ie=cticns in trhose portions of the user
pooulaticn who are most susceptible to the drug. Accordingly, to accentuate
the efiects and meximize the prcbabili‘-y that acverse reactions will beccme
ranifest, the relatively srall nurber of test animals are given large coses.
In fact, becauvse the pm-ccse of a preclinical ..c:ac:.“y study is to dete—mine
‘a toxicological profile of a drug, ths human dose is an almest meaningless |
camarative measure. In animal stidies, the cuesticn is what react.m'ns will
be manifested, not how rmuch can tre aniral tolerzte.

Bven if the cozarison were valid, the level of the animal dose as campared
to the huran dose is misleadingly referenced by Searle. Thre animal study in
cuesticn wes designed specifically to establish himwan use for the treatmen

318
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of severe congestive heart failure at dosacz levels four to six times
larger than the human dose for which the drug is warketed. Moreover,
while carparing the animal test éocse to the dosage for human use, Searle '
fails to acknowledge that at the time of this animel study, it was testing
Aldzctone in humans at six times the cosage of the dxug then arproved.

In its written reply to the 305 Notice, Seacle also enohasizes the lack

of significant firdings from the study cone at Eazeltcn which was campleted
o Rleactone at esprodmataly the seme time as Searle's own study. 305
Reply, pages 2-3. The Hazeltcn study, however, does not -balance the Searle
sty since, amcng othsr r2asons, +ha amcimt ¢f Aldactone received by the
hicrest cosed animals in {h2 Hazelton stuly was an amount betwesn the low
and micd—Goses for the Searle tast animals.

4. Searle contends that the MSR repo-- was incarplete. 305 Peply, pace 9.
Eowever, the report, as received by Sszrxle and wltimmtely sutmitted to the
Asency, is in precisely.the s=we fom as othar pathology recorts by Dr. Maux
that Searle tmhesizatingly sutmitted to {2 Ttm. Lt -ect, SSarle 1TSEIT was
CEoeble Of "CoipiTe=g Je STUsT =—r=C"g to Dr. Mauro's pathology
esaninaticn the statistical analysis it had perfomed in August 1973

and the gross coservations fram the necrcpsy. Searle chose not to do

SO. _ .-

5. Scarle also insists that Dr. Willican's éiagrosis were mcre unfavorsble

to the drug and thus Searle cannct be zcocuseld of hiding "dameging" inforratic

305 Paply, pace 8. This assertion is very misleadirg, Dr. Willican's diagnc

were unfavarzble in the same respect (thyroid ard testes) as Dr. Mauro's

reports were wnfavorable; his dizgnosis sirply rade t2d news worss. Tha real

significance of Dr. Willigan's diacrnosis is that he did not find 2 statistice

significant incidence of liver timers, which wes Sezrle's grsatest ccncern
ith the MER reocrt and was the reascn why D=, Stejsk2l was asked in

August 1973 to initially review the liver slides, nct all slides.. It should

also be notad that until Msy 1974, when Dr. Stajskal reviewed not only

liver slides but numbers of the thyroid and testes slides, the only besis

uom which Searle could canclude that the entire MSR resort was wrelizble

was Dr. Stejskal's review of scme of the liver slicdes from tha hich cdose

and control groups. Dr. Mauro, cn the other hand, looked at approximately

" 5,000 slides, including 277 liver slides. BEut even the refutatiecn of Searle!

argument tends to chscure the point: The DD requlations are éesigned to Qi

data to the FDA before it is ra—evaluz=tsd, wiathe the result be to confim

or ndarnine the initial ccnclusions.

In a similar vein, Ssa2rle also discounts the adnittedly unfavorsble thyroid
ard testes diacnesis cn the growd that these aze endocrine glarés and wers
the “expected" site of drug-relatec ez ticrs sinc€ ~icactore is felt to be
an endocrine-active émug. 305 Reply, zege 21, This “tarcet-crgan” arguent

is unsi—oortable.
¢l
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'Even assuming that a drug acts where it is "erzectaZ" to act, the nature
of the reaction is not predictable. That is why animal toxicity studies .
are conducted; to detemine the range and severity cf reactions. There
were many abnommelities in the "target organs" of the rats on this study.
A tumr is one of many reactions; but it is cne of the most serious kinds
of toxic reacticns that are seen. Moreover, animal toxicity studies are
requlztcry suhmitted to the FDA which revezl little or mo significant toxic
reactions, even in those orcans th2orized or "evpectzed" as being the
"tzrgat organs". Because every acaent known Lo caus= tors in man also
causes tumors in enimals, tiors in enimals constitmte alarming irolicaticns
‘fo: hizran toxic reactions.

FDA has recuirsd Searle and other ranufacturers of cral contraceptives, ,
which are erdcc—ine-zctive carpounds, to conduct lang-term animel toxicity
tests. Vnen ti—ors of the ramma-y gland, cne of tE= endocrine glands, e ..
Giscovered, the FoA has forced the reroval of the particular érug frem

the market and prevented testing in hwrmans. tith the oral contreceptives,
21 of which have basically the sz therapzutic aczion, sane have caused
+rors in test animels, others have rot. Ooviously, therefore, "target-
organ" tuncrs are not predictive. .

ANAUS .. -

6. S-Ssarle justifies its fajlure to submit the MER ~ezort basad in part on
Dr. Mauro's use of terminology in evaluatinc the timyroid slicdes, arguing
that her choice of words bespsaks Dr. Mauro's unreiiability as a patholegist
305 Reply, pages 11-12. Dr. Stejskzl has also stat=d that.her terminology
indicared that her report could not be relied pon.

V2t Dr. Mauso classifisd as an "adsncratous coiter”, & ncn-tumorous -
hyperplasia of the tlyroid, wes classified by Dr. Willigan and Dr. Stejskal
as an "adencma“, that is, a benicn tymor. Searle rever notified Dr. Mawro
or MR of any questions about Dr. Mauro's rescrt, irclding its terminolocy.
On Jure 1, 1973, CEaa] wrote to MBR stating that Searle had received
the MBR report and thac ic "1ooks just fine'. Searle now argues that this
reference azplies not to the liver or cther readincs themsalves but rather
to +he form of ths repcrt. ‘ o

Vhether form inclifes terminolocy we can cily speculate. The fact is .that

the term "adencretous goiter” is recocnized as a very precise reference to
a no-tuosous coaéiticn of the thyroid probably resulting from a metzbolic
imtalance (Bx. 7, pertinent excerpts Iram recent eSitions of basic referencs
werks in veterina-y patholegy). Thus, wnile Dr. St2jskal suggests Dr. Mauwo
anzlysss weme overly general and thus \mreliszbls, F2r slicde readings erpeas

W
t O



Page 16 - Homorable Sermuel X. Stinner

to have pin-rointed a significant distincticn in thyroid proliferative
lesiors. - s : . R

VI
Searle Reply to Allegation of Misbranding

Searle's reply to the allegations of causing Aldactcne to be misbranded

is essentially to accuse the FDA of not moving srototly in its role to
review labeling. 305 Peply, pages 22-28. In fact, the Willican report
was sutmitted to FDA in March 1973; the Acency reviewzd it and convened
the Caxrdio-Renal Advisory Comittes in June, which issused its conclusion
in September. Also in Septerber, Searle summitted groposed new labeling
and thereafter a proposed "Dear Doctor" letter, both of which were inadezuate
By cangariscn, Searle's first prcrosed amended labeling for Aldactcrne came
not irmediately won thsir receipt of the Willigan preliminary report in
D2cem-er 1974, nor uzcn the sutmission to the Agancy of the final report
in March 1975 but rather after sumission in July 1975 ¢f the M2R report
ard, notably, after creazticn of FDA's investicatory Tesk Force. o

The burden to provide adequzte labeling is placed by the law squarely

an the shoulders of the manufactursr-trezenent o a product. Moreover,
in ordar to proily advise thysicians, FDA drug rzgulations provide that
warnings and hazards may be added to drug lebeling without prior zsproval
by the Agency. 21 CFR 314.8(d)(1). Searle did nothing to resact to the
MR repcct even after May 1974, when the thyroid timer prcblem documented

in tha+ report was ccnfirmed by Dr. Stejskal.

FD&, of course, did nct havs an cocoertunity to take action con Aldactone
labeling on the basis of ths MER report until that rsport was summitted

in mid-July 1973. Ssarle cuesticns whsther the labeling would have been
changed on the basis of the MSR diagnosis alcne, suggesting that it would
not. To the com-rary, with respect to thyroid and testes, the findings of
the MSR and Willigan recorts were consistent; the Willigan report icdentifying
even rore turors than the suwopressed report. If Searle had used the MER
reocrt as received in March 1973, the labeling for Alcactone would have
contzined a statement — as it does today — abcut possible cdese-related
thyroid, testicmlar and liver conmssguences (Ex. 8). Contrary to the
assertion in the 305 Reply, pace 26, the FDA coes ndt acknowledge that the
MER report is mot the basis of the labeling chance. Tne MR report sioports
the labeling reSsrence to liver lesions and, together with the Willigan
report, substam=iate tr2 label warnings with respect to testiculer and thyroi:

tuemors.
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Vii -
Sumrary

In sum, Searle received in March 1973 a patholecy report which contained
Samaging informaticn about its largest selling éruc, information that
was confimmed two months later by its own Matheratics-Statistics Department.
2 few of the slides which concerned Searle rost, those concerning the liver,.
were reviewed by an in-hous2 sathologist who took exception with scme of the
csultant patiologist's diagacsas. On thet basis, the entire report,
later confirmsd by another pathologist to be substamtially correct in its
results, if not in its slids—by-slicde analyses, was withheld from tha DA
. by Searle for over two years. _ L

.
Tre legal as well as the practical answer to Seazrle's after-the-Zact justi-
fications for not sumitting the MER report is contmined in Ssarle's om
305 reply at page 25: "Ths quality of the decision rmade must be judced by
infcrmation availeble at ths time, not by sudsscuent develcmments". lNowters
in its sumissicns to the FLA does Searle enplain why it initially reviewed
only the MER liver diagneses. Uncuesticnzbly, it wes the report by its
Mathematics-Statistics Desaronent that, just as Dr. Mauro hed sucgested,
there vwas a drug-related increase in liver timers. This was the motiveticn
for thre withnolding ol the MER report, the use ¢f a second outside patholegis
and the prompt sumnission of his findings even though they cenfimred drug-
relatsd tumors in two cther organs, )

VIiii

Concealing Material Facts and Meking
False Statements in Studies Sumitied .
in Suzport of Searle's Food A=Sitive

Petition for Aspartzre

A. The Product. Aspartzme is the trads name of a swestening ingredient
far food renufactured by Ssarle. . Because Aspartzme is a food additive,

1t ray be marketed cnly uscn FDA approval of a petition establishing its
safety, which acoroval is codified as a regulaticn published in the Federzl

Aspartame is a synthetic procuct based wwon two amirno acids, l-ascartic acid
and l-phenylalanine. It is intemsely sweet, abcut 10 times as swee:
as sugar, but is metabolized in the human bocy as a protein wmilike suzer whic
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is metabolized as a carbchydrate. Because of its great sweetness, Asoartame
used in place of sugar would previce cnly acproximately 1/120th of the cale:
of a quantity of sugar yielding ecuivelent s.eetness. Tre potential comern
value of Aspartare is enogmous. Searle has built a ranufacturing Plant sole
for the purpose of producing Aspartaze, .

B. Status of Ascartame. In the Federal P=gister of March S, 1573 (38 F.R.
5921), copy enclosed (Ex. 9a), FDA cave notice that a pztiticn had been

- filed by Searle precposing the issuance of a regulation to providas for the
sale use of Aspartame in foods as a nutritive substarcé with sweetness and
flavor enhancing proparties. In the Fedzral Recistar of July 16, 1974 (239
F.R. 27137), copy enclosed (Ex. Sb), the Comissicrer conclided that tha
evaluation of the data in the petition,which included approviratsly 150
stidies and other relevant material, justified amerding the food zdditive
reguletions to provide for the safe use of Asparizve under soecified conditi

In respcnse to this publicaticn, FDA received chjections to'the regulation
from members of the public and two reguests for a hearing, provided under

§ 409 of the Act, 21 U.S.C. 348, Issu2:z concemming the s2fety of Ascartame
were idantified by the objectors in the first part of 1975, and it was
agreed that there would be an acinistrative hearing, .called a Board of
Inzuiry. Besed upon the Commissiorer's ccnclusizn in July 1975 that the
intsgrity of certain animal studiss conductad Sy Searle was questionabdle,
and in conjunction with the estadblisiment of the investicatory Task Force,
including auditing of certain animal studies ralating to Asgartzme, the FDA
stayed the effectivensss of the food additive reguletion in a notice publishs

in the Federal Pecister of December 5, 1973 (40 F.R. 56907), ccoy enclosad
(=. 5¢c).

Ster the issuance of the Task Force resort in March 1976, FDA began to
consicer methods by which certain of the studies sukmitted by Searle would
be authenticated at Searle's expense, by 2 rcn-covermment parel of excerts.

This process, to be performed under a contract epproved by the FDA and paid
for by Searle, is soon to begin. .
Tne 52-Weex Toddcity Stucdy in the Infant Menkey. .
A. Initiation and Basic Description of the Stusv.  In November 1969, Ssarle
- officials deciced it was “essentiai” to cbtain the cpinicn of Dr. Harry A.
Waisman about the differences and similarities in the side effects of Asgartz
as cxpared with those of phenylalanine (Ex. 10). Dr. Waismen ves a lezding

ce3
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researcher associated with the University o Wisconsin Pegicnal Primate

nter and had published extensively on the toidcity of phenylalanine.
Dr. Waisman's published vorks establish that ghenylalanine is cazable of
producing brain damage in Rhesus ronkeys. Trha Ascartzme study was initiated
on January 15, 1970 and terminated cn or about Aoril 25, 1971. Searle
sutmitted its report to the FDA on Octchber 10, 1972Z. A copy of the report
of the study,” excluding apoendix tables, is ernclosed (Ex. 11). Unfortunatel
during the course of this study, in March 1571, Dr. Waistan died. '

In this study, seven new-born Rhesus fonkeys v=re placed on a diet which '
includs=d Aspartame. The first infant monkevs became pert of the study in

' January 1370; the last wers added,” at birth, in October 1970." ‘The daily
feeding of the mcnkeys, and ronitorinz and reccrdins their acticns, was

the responsibility of Mr. Gunther Sheifler, a lahcoratory technician with a
bachelors' degres who was selected bv Dr. Waistan., The tables of latoratory
test results, feading schecdules ard the like vhich constitute the sutTmary
cf rzw data of the Searle report were pregarsd primarily by Mr, Sheffler.
Prescrably, Mr. Sheffler selected the rew-borns for inclusion in the study;
his selection was consistent with criteriz which way have ‘been set by Dr.
‘aisran. Although Dr. Weisman had eccess o and was undoubtedly familiar
with the monkey colony at the Primate Centsr, in 2l likelihocd he rarely
if ever directly participated in the conduct of the study. HKowever, he and
Searle were responsible for the sitvdy dasicn.

The Aspartame ronkey study did not have "untrezted concurrent controls”, that
trare was no parallel grow of new-born renkays identified and menitored for
caparative purposes wiich were not fed Asparizme. RAccoxling to a Searle prc
drafted several ronths after initiation cf the study, the monksys were to be
keot on a diet with Aspartame for cne year, then reurned to a besal diet,
su=jected to behavioral and learning tests, aré finzlly sacrificed and
necrcosied (avteosied) for the preraraticon of tissue slides to be reviewed
microscopically for alteraticn (post-mortsm verk-up). Of the seven test
mnkeys, cne died after 300 days; fcur were ket cn Aspartame for aporoximate
365 dzys as plamned; and admninistration of Ascartame for two others was cease
on Marth 31, 1971, after approximately 200 cavs. No behavioral or learning
tests were performed. Cnly the cre monkay who had died during the test was
necroosied and subject to post-mortsm work-uo.

e's Pzzort of the Stidv, - Before
cxrenting briefly cn the specific falsificzticns listed in trne 305 Notice
and to clarify why this stidy came to the attfenticn of ths Asencv, vou should
ncte the very great literary license Ssarle oifficials tock in drafting its

E . ' 324
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report. Searle has repeatedly contanded that Dr. Weisman ves wor)u.ng on
his owmn, that Searle had little or no contxol over his acuv:.t:.es, that
the Searle protocol fer. this study wes drafted after the inception of the
study in order to attempt to brmg sGe retrospectixe structure to the
vwork done by Dr. Waeisman and that because of Dr. Waistan's 8ezth, the
docurents reflecting the dzily conguct of the study vere in chaos. 305

Reply, pages 34, 37, 338, 43.

‘In essence, Searle now insists that the Waisman studs was uncentrolled,
and refers to it conspicuously es a "pilet" experimeat; its shortcomings
are itemized, all but enthusiastically. ' IS L o

Yet, while cnnta_.m.ng a few carefully couched C.IS clzimers, the report of
this téxicity stidy was summitted to the 2gendy jusi like any other of the
150 studies; it be=*s Ss_the awtrborship cf the pa'so-v-_:espcns;ble for the
study, namely, & “"««5__"”::_—_‘:'_:*" e, ard Waistan, in that ordar; it bears
a Searle Patholccy-Toxicology p*omﬂt noser; it is in standaxd formmat
setting forth methodology, cbservaticns, and tha lik2, including a study’

design and canclusions.

Searle wanted éaiz ccmzarinc Asgarcame wish ghenvlalanins., Dr. Waistan

was the expert in the field '\d his nzme wcuid carry creat waight. The
recort to FDA is drafted in a manner which covers up the aémitted inadequacy
of the desicn, control and documentation of the stuZv. Pc.veve:, whan Searle
is accused of representing this study for far rore than it was, it denies
alrost all 3~<:nc:rf.'lt=dgo of or involvement with its initiaticn, dasign or
parforrance; Searle cannot have it both ways.

Sezrle's conclusian that it had "no ccntrol over cooiuct of the study, and
Dr. Waisman did not have to, nor did he, follow any m.,cos._mns by Searle
or its enmployess" is difficult to urd_rs‘:.::.d. Searls documents in the
possession of the FDA establish that in Noverber 19£2, Searle sought to
involve Dr. Waiswan in a stidy of Aspartame in ordar o cmare its
texicity, particularly seizures and learning defects cdue to brain damrage,
with that of phenylalanine. See Ex. 10. In January 1970, such a study
wes initiated (>s. 12, 13). It is also noteworthv that in a m.::'o'r'apc:m
of a September 4, 1970, conversation with Cr. Vaiszan,[RiT o3 z )
that he suggestsd to Dr. Waisrzn that two animels be placed om‘?t;cy at
lower dosace levels within the naxct few days (2. 1l4). This is exactly vhat

(e ]
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hagpened.  Searle asserts that the behavioral testinc was never anuc-.patej
on this "pilot" study but rather on a subsequent study which was being -
planned by an associate of Dr. Waismen. 305 R=ply, page 36. However,
various Searle cdocurants abtained by the Task rorce mvastlgators, written
both cduring the subsequent to the ronkey study, estadblish beyond any quasticn
that behavioral testing, as well as th2 recassary posc-mortem work-up, was
originally planned for this stwdy. Ses Evs. 11-14.

C. Specific False Statements or Concealed Facts. T2 305 Notice delirneates
four false statements and entries in Searle's rsscrt of this study. (1) The
report failed to reveal that the infant menksvs rere not-suitable for the
stidy. (2) The resport states that acceptabl: historical and centeorary
éata on untreated control mcnkeys wer2 aveilable, thus diminishing the
necessity for concurrent control groups of morkeys. (3) The report falssly
sta es that animals were not aveiladble for purchzcse and sacr1f1c= (necrc:sy.)

L the terminaticn of the administraticn of the test corpound, as originally
p¢amef’l because of personnel shcrizces. Tnis statemant also gives the
rr*.islea;‘.'_rg imoression that the anirals vere incapeble of being purchased
when in fact they were avellable Ior purchese, glthouch not irmadiately,
zfter the test ccpound had ceased to b2 adninistared. (4) The repert falsely
states that necropsy cata cn cne non-surviving ronkey was lost to Searle
&= to "similar" reasons, namely, conftsicn &2 :>=*sc:-:e- shortages after Dr.
lizistan's death In fact, the data were aveileble anz were obtained at the
Regicnal Primate Centar by FDA investigators curing the Task Force investigeti
loreover, tbe monkey died aporoxima ely five rcaths b—z*’o*e Dr. Waisman's dezth

1. The first specific violation listed in the 305 b.o:;ce 1s basad, in part,

tocn a Janeary 19, 1572, merorandum written Lyf
raservations of M. Scheffler about tre sm‘caw—.l:ty ana docurentaticn of menke

for the study (Ex. 15). fm‘_ﬁ_ es of 2 conversation with Mr.
ScheiZler state: - "no extensive records ca individual ronkeys (. 16). 1In
addition, on June 23, 1971 SEETReTE] vas made aware of the fact that
anz of the seven morkeys on the study "nnvar should have been included in
your experirant since he had an obviocus birth defect" (Ex. 17).

Searle asserts that neither nutriticnal nor rsorcéuctive histeries of

the rothers of the infant tast monkeys were in any way significant to ,
the study. 305 Reply, page 43, Nevertheless, the e-:ort states that = . .-
only "jnfant Rhasus monkeys (Mzcaca mlatra) frem £ 2 term, nomal
pregnancies” weres usad. In fact, the rotners wers laz:oratozy
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rcnkeys and h2d besn on other tests. Tna impact of the rother's lealth,
nutriticn, reproductive history, etc., woulc ke significant were the -
rother to pass to her off-spring scme deficisncy, scme altered type or
rate of metabolism cue to another chenical she n2d been exposed to
previously, any or all cf which right affect the infant monkey and its
reaction to Aspartzme. »XNurther, these effects ray bz carpletely unnoticed
by laboratory technicians.
2. The second specific allegaticn in the 305 Motice wes that the report -
falsely states that a concurrent comparison control group (monkays in the -
study that were monitorsd but not exposad to Aspartame) was unnecessary
because acceptable historical and contersorasy data cn untreated monkeys
were aveilable. Searle acdmits that thars were no exdsting post-fortem

data from other renkeys in the cclony but rotes that there was such
ante-rortem (pre-sacrifice). data IZcr other rorkeys. This seers to be . |
corzect. And in view of the fact thet the stucr did not include

behavicrzl and post-nertem aspscts as criginzlly planned, the nen-
evistence of post-morten data Ior \mirezisd monkasys was rendered essentially
irrelevent. Accordingly, this alleced falsshood now apzears -to have been
ad=quztely explained.

3. The third charce of falsificz=icn in the 205 Notice alleges that the
reasons given by Searle for the fzilure to sacrifice and necrcpsy the
monkeys “at the terminaticn of acninistratica ¢ the test camound”, narely,
shortage of perscanel and lack of sipervisicn Zollowing Dr. Vaisman's death,
are untrue. . '

Searle's reply to these a2llegaticas focuses wmen the fact that the mCnkavs
were taken off Aspartare feading a2llscedly without nctice to Searle, arnd
were thus "wmavailable" for sacrilfice "at the2-oint of terminaticn"., The
doauments available to the IDi o not now estztlish that Searle haé knowledse
cf the terminaticn dztes of acministraticn of Aspartame (March 31, April 4
and April 25, 1971) until mid-Jun2 1971. But the fact that the availability
of these monkeys for purchase and sacrifice dic not inmediately coincicde with
the termination of the Aspartzme f22dings is not relsvant; the protocol for
this study originally provicded fc- cessaticn of acéninistration of Aspartzme
prior to sacrifice and necropsy. Se2 EX. 14, Thus, Searle's lack of
imraediate awereness of the terminztion of aGninistration of Asgartame .
-&es .not pecate the fact that Ssarle later had ths opoartunity. to buy the -
menkeys. Searle could nct truthiftlly assert in its report to FD3 that the
ronkeys wers "tnavailazble"; so Sezrle stated that they were "unaveilabls at
the time" when they were taken oI Aspartame feeding. ' '
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Searle's failure to necropsy the anitals, incliding examining brain tissue
for those monkeys which had ranifested seizures, zs rmore likely based on
the fact that Dr. Waisman had no post-rortsm coparative data. If Searle
had fcund adverse effects, it wowld have hed no way to show that the con-
secuances were not attributable to Aspartame. S2arle did not want to take
this chance. But Searle also did not want to zéait the real reason for its
indifference. *The same apprehension of a "can of worms" is reflected in
Searle meroranda discussing the potential comsectences of Dr. Waisran's
?e-=cmg of Assartame to precnant monkeys (_.. . 18). -

Pelia.n.:e upon alleged perscnnel si“.ortages a~d lack of supervision do not
exolein why Searle did not closely mcnitor this study., FDA investigation
did not revezl that things were plinged into chacs by Dr. Waisran's death as
Szarle has ra:e.at=d_y suggasted., 305 Reply, pags 55. Treairent was cortinus
for o to five weeks aftar Waisman's death cn monkevs M-79 and M-14, carplet
tr=ir one year treatment &s schsduled. During interviews in Fe..."u..:y of this
year by rDA Task Forca remzers, rr. Scheliier stated that there were plenty
of parscnel con hand when Dr. Valistan died and that when the rew laboratory
director took over, he dismissed a2 nutber of emtloyess because they were not

Szzrle asserts thaf it maXes no Giffarznce vhit rsascn is given for certain
evants as long as tha events ars tmue, We disacts=e. None of tre real
rezscns for Searle's decision not to purchase the "ch<=ys for post-mortem
vczrk-L:: was included in the scimissicn to FDR; tha 2 roakeys were available
r ::m'cl'=.e and post-morcen work-to, but I 37T --:ﬁa.v1saﬁ ey
._g'}- and Sauncders that the rcnkeys shculd rot ke turchased; they concurred.
S== . 15. Neverthaless, it may be litarally t=u= that the ronkeys were not

¥nown by Searle to be aveilzble "at the term ::.::'.cu of administration of the
test caoaumndg”. .

4. Finally, the report submitted to FDR statss that necrcpsy data on the
cre non-sunviving rmnlwy, which received hich doses of Aspartzme and died
affer 300 dzys, wer2 lost to Sezrle cduz to Dr. Weisman's death.

In fact, the data were ava.’.lab"e frcm the Priate Center and were cbtained
by the FDA Task Force investicaters. ' The ronkey Cied approxirately five
ronths before Dr. Waisman's Geath. Searle coes rot r Dlj to this charge -
éirectly, but rather states that its. use of the term "necxrpsy .cata" mea. nt’
tissve slides, not the autcpsy repcrt dated Octcter 22, 1970, which Searle
clairs it never received. It is uncdisputed that cn Cctcber 21, 1970, Dr.

R -;"’ =7)]-was raca aware oI the cea2th ef the renksy end that sacrifice wes
"":’fam Acparently, Searle failed to Lo’ lew o on this informaticn to

c..."=z:n_r° that a reocrt had besn cererated
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Searle now admits that it does rot know vhat happensd to the "necropsy .
céata"; nevertheless, the report gives an ans.er as if the facts were known,

narely, that the data were lost in the confusicn after Dr. Waismen's Ceath.
Tnis is an excuse based on no informaticn, rathrer than the truth,

The 46-Feek Toxicity Study in the H=ster

A. The Study. On 2pril 20, 1970, Searle initiated what was to have been

a 104-weak taxicity study on Aspartare in ths hamster; The study was *
terminated permaturaly, after 46 vw=eks of teament, die to an mneyzectedly
high mortality in both control and treated animals ascribed to a disease -
known as "wet tail" (ssvere dizhrrea). Ssarle sum=tied its regort to tie
Agency on December 8, 1972. : L

[
B. The Violaticn of Title 18. Tn= allegsd violaticn of Title 18, Section
1001, set forth in tn2 rDA Notice of Hearing, is bzs=d cn the following set o
facts: Blood from certain znimals in the study was collected for hematolegy
testing ard for blood chenistry et ths schediled 26-2ek interval. Samples
were drawn and six difierent kinds of tests were cczivcted. Searle technicia:
appear to have experisnced methodclocy prcblerms with cne of these , the test fi
senum gluccse (bleed sugar). Seacle &id not correct the preblem with the
Glucose testing until epprodimately twelve weeks latsr. By that time,
however, epproximately 30 percent cf the previously tested hamsters had
died. Accordincly, at the 38th w=2% of tre study, cther hamsters vere
taken as substitutes fram the szme fesding crowms'zrd blood wes collected
from them. The gluccse values of these new enimzls were reported by Searle
as being those of tests run at 26 waeks cn blood szmoles from the criginal
animals, which had sincs died. Thus, the gluccse velues represented for one
set of animals at a particular point in tive are the values cbtained for
different animals at a different tine.

C. Ssarle's Inadacuate Explanatica. Searle acnits the fact that its
report contains this false informaticn, 305 2sply, zeges 66-67, but argues
that this did not result from willS®! conduct or amy intentional act.
Moreover, Searle argues that this falsehwod is not raterial to the
appraisal of the safety of Aspartzme, ' o

Most Courts of Appeal have held that.a violaticn wnar § 1001 can ke sustained
only wzon a showing of the rateriality of a falsehcod. Eowever, the courts
generally defire a "material” statement as one which has the tendency to
influence or is capable of influencing. 2ctual reliance unon false informatic:
need not be shown. Nor rmust the Geverrment prove that the perscn knew that a
statement was false; rather, a reckless disrzzard for the truth or evidence of

329
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a conscious purpose to avoid learning the truth will establish the requisits
culpability. fiere, documents in the sosssssicn of FDA establich at least

that FRIEIEERIMINev of the nesd for 2 second glucose test and knew that

hamsters were dying and substitutes were nesdzsd.

Searle suggests that these data were cathered and prepared by technicians
reporting to Mr. Martinrez, and that neither[TrErerosn norfTE5T) was
awere of the exdistence of the prcblem concerning tress gdata uncil they re-
ceived FDA's Notice. of Eearing. Eowever, Pl wzdadnits in his 30s
reply that he was involved in resolving the serm gluccse problers, although
he claims that le did not review this matte- when ¢rafting the report.

FETEET01305 Reply, page 17. The substitute animels vere identified »
sucstitutes on the raw data shests which, we believe, T X7D e
- as the authors of this study, wers -cbliced to review ard may in fact have
reviewsd in- aréer to attest to the intsgrisy ani accuracy of the report.
Further evidence of disregard for the truth will have to be Gevelcped by

the Grand Juryv.

~ Se2rle argoes that thare was no sotive for any Intentionzl misrepresentaticn
or concealing of the fact that glucose vzluss for on2 animel were substituted
for those of another. 305 Reply, paces 73-74. Whils the quastion of gluccoss
levels s2ems to have b=sn non-contmoversizl in this study, the failure of t-s
Searle report to simply note the substituticn of tas: results could be
atiributed to the fact that at the time of the substitution the animals
were contracting a dissase and the stucy was accordingly threztened. Also,
the reason for the wids variztien in glucoss velues was, at first, not
known. Until B toonsirned that it wes a laboratory problem,
the unexpected test results micht have been thought to indiczte severe
liver or pancress reactions in the test anirzls.

It is true that these entries ray nct have been material to a determination
oI the ultimata safety of Aspartame. Fowever, as Searle points out, nurerces
studies have been condusted and sutmittesd to tre Agency in si=oor: of the
safety of this swestening agent and thus, arcuzbly, even a wholly fabricated
study right not guzlify as material in the sense of Peing a "but for" or
indezendently sufficient basis for a éscision. . S

We believe that the law permits prosecution for a falsehocd that has the,
potentiality faor influencing the Govert—went in it$ evaluaticn of the
immediate report in which the falsehood is cont2ined whether or not the
sun of the safety cdata is altered by == falserood at isswe. Mereover,
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in this case, the hamster study wes s2lected by the FDA Task Force as
one of a few Aspartame studiies for review upen the consultaticn with
taxicologists in the FDA Bureau of Foods. Both this study ard the monkey
study ret the criteria for selecticn of studies estzhlished by the Task

Force.

Searle arques’ that the original recorcs relating to the glucose substitutions
are in ens.enc= and only their desn tion or :-‘cx';fv'a ion would be consiste
with an intenticnzl falsification in the fina2l reo = This," of course, is
not a nec ssa'ry prarezuisite to a fincing of :_'1:=_'1t; if it were, every '

Zendant in every rresacution involving a2 crime of intent would argt'_e,
pen*a:'se‘v, that - his -a.n.lure to destroy evidence of his culpability -
established his lack of inter

e final note an both Aspartame studies, In ccnsidering the extent to
umc.u the reports were writien to cor ey irprassicns rore favorable than
the uncderlying €at2 weuld sizoort, refzrence shculd be made t0 the mesoraré =
of Dec=wber 28, 1870, frcm ¥x. Eeliinc of Ssarie to, erong otpa-s Drs.

werea s oy, entitled "Food and 3*‘;: Sweetaner Stratecy”, ooy enclosed

. 19). In that rerorandun, Searle commits itself to o...ta.mmg favora.ble
review by FDA perscarnel py sesking to cevelep in th=m a "subcanscious spiris
of p",":_‘_C"uad.Cl in the Sezrle studiss. Wnhat DA nescs instead, and most
have to evaluate procducts, are adsguate and cantrolled studies, susoorted
by ths raw data, zrnd reoortad accn:at.ly ard in a2 timely fashion. The
assirption that thes2 reports can be relied on is at the heart of FDa's
missicn; the Aga .y cannot possibly leck over the shoulder of each
laboratory tecmician or c’::..-:‘a::r..n involved in each of the thousands of
animal and hutan crug studies conducted each year. Toe FDA rust receive
the truth, not -s.'c"*1c~:'*c-1 warfars., To esphasize the irportance of safety
‘d2ta cn P..,e_.._.e, we note that if ultirately o orcved for marketing, this
sweetaning acext can reascnably be ex:)"‘t.d to ke part of the dajly diet

of every ;—ne:ﬁ can.

X

Indivicduals Vho Azpear to be
Responsible fcr the Violaticns
Charged in fnl‘s \oq.ca oa. I-’==*':.“g

- -

A prin« pal purocse fer wnvenmg an investica w:y C-.anc J\..ry would be
to icantify those cersens responsitle for <-.'1v viclations of the law
investigated v the Acency. The Derscns nEs zmed in the FDA 305 Notice
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were idantified on the basis of information imewm -0 or abtained by the
Agency, but without the berefit of capulsor, process. 2All Searle officers,
erployees, and former ewployees, were interien=d by Task Force investigator
in the presence of Searle coumsel or mconitors.

A. Overall Coroorate Orcanizaticn. The orcznizaticn charts and similar
infooration available to ths FDn revezl the Zollowing major outlines of
respansibility within the Searle Corpany., : :

In 1971, T. B. Carney, Sz., was the Vice-Presi ant of Searle laboratories
for Research, Develozment 'zrd Cent-ol. e TR SIOrTs%] Was then ths.
Vice-Presidant for Ressirch and Development, urder Mr. Carney. The '
research and develorment growp consisted of six branches; Dr. o R
. was the Director of Biology ard was superior o ETTS BN E LA
R2ac of the patholocy/toiicology secticn. In Ferrvary 1972, {ednirmiesTy
replaced Mr. Carnsy as the hsad of the RD:C &nd EX=iwTRbecame the Divector
for R&D. Dr. Francis J. Saunders replaced Eossdti®as the r=24d of Biology.
Tre Director of Cremistry, a branch cn ecuzl level with Biology was Dr.
Paul D. Klimstra. In 2oxil 1572, ST a s cr:e Presicdant of Searle
Laboratories, a division of G. D. Searie zha Cc:;any was
-, Gesignated as Vice-Presicent for Research and <velcoTEnt.

In July 1973, at atcut the time thzt Searle 1=s teginning to ezl with
the M3R report, the research and develcoment croup was reorganized ang
Dr. Klimstra wvas rade the Director . Pre=Clinical Research and LCevelcoment,
operating directly under EE5553 TN was made the Director cf
Pathology/Toxicology and réported cirectly to Dr. Klimstra. ' Dr., Saurders
was given the title of Dirsctor, Rasezrch Lizizon st the same level es Dr.
Klirstra, but outside the reporting chain O PR Klinstra-orasprraea
In Moy 1974 Z57223% wes given tre titls of \Wce-President for Scientiiic
Affairs although fe continved to report tomrEwwmsiand remaired the
irmediate suzerior of Dr. Xlimstra who in tu— retained the irmediate
superior of [oae=EComezay NO otrer structu—l changss were macs, and
these cesignations rereined the szre thrcugh 1975.

B. Responsibilitv for Failure to Submit the 3R Recor:. When the MER
report was received at Sesarle in March 1973 it would have been within
RN jPirector of the Pathology/Texicelogy

the immediate d=main of €:T% ) ‘ the Pa
Decartment’ and his sierior : S. Iron ebcat the time that Searle
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began its Matheratics/Statistical eveluation of the report (August 1973)
wntil its submission, it wculd have remained within the jurisdiction of
IS SATED, who was then reporting to Dr. Klimstra. Dr. Stejskal, who
originally reviewed the MBER tissue slide evaluations, was ultisately responsi
to SR ammea® through his immediate superior in the Pathology Laboratory.
Sferrunctionad as head of the Toxdicolegy Laboratory also reporting to
1. -Evidence of Résponsibility Develczed by the Tesk Force. The Acency
has evicdence that it wasyriFErawno origin2lly reguastad Dr. StEj;.kal . .
to review thbs MR liver FrD aralyses in July or early August 1973, and it
- was either LEroied STTIRam TN IT, ) Wio reguasted further review of liver,
thyroid, and testes slices In redriary 1974, vhich Dr. Stejskal performed
in April or May of that year (Ex. 20). %22 T ere fully
aware of Dr. Mauro's slics rsadings by Sestember 1973. Accozding to Df.- *
Dutt, the then head of Searle's Mathematics-Statistics Degartment, it wes
TEEPES] who requasted him to perform a stztisticzl analysis cn the

»BR Teport in Aucust 1973 (Ex. 21).

Tre FDA has no direct knowledge of the extent, if anv, of personal knowledcs
or particication of Drs. Sauncars, Klimstra, FlimmescreX in the decision
to withhold the MER reoort from the TDA. In views of the damacing effect of
the liver findings, as well as the testas and thyroid twors, and given ths
ccmercial inportance of Alcactone in Searle's marketing line, it is @ifficul
to belisve that[iinra=w, L@id not advise his superiors Drs. Saunders

(and thereafter Klimstra) pLii@fESFe=dof the FER regort. Restrictive
labnlirg for Aldactone, as 1n fact eventually resulied, would certz2inly have
rendered these individuals accountadle to thair corporate supericrs for any
decline in sales of the drus. The evidence in.cur investicatory files leads
us to the conclusicn thathSEEIBE=TRE=er vere in 2 position to know of tf
repcrt and certainly had authority to decide rot to sutmit it; we have however
no dirsct evidence ci thair actual kaculedce or participation in that decisic:

2. Tha 305 Paplies. In the Searle 305 rezly, we are told that
5E5=E55S praotly advised Dr. Klimstra of the findings of Dr. Willigan.
305 Reply, page 6. This does not necessarily mezn that Dr. Klimstra was
advised of the earlier Maufo findings, but it cces rzise the provocative
questicn of whather Dr. Klimstra, Dr. Saunders and ERIZFRTE wore similarly

" advised when the MER report was rsceived in-March 1973, particularly 'in view
of the fact that Searle had ro kasis for discounting the MER report wntil Dr.
Stejskal's Eugust review.
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InERTIoZREIZ 305 reply, he states that he first leamned of the existence
of the MER report on June 17, 1975, an assertion that is certainly approoriate
for Grand Jury inquiry. [EZEDSZRTS, however, insists uon defending the
instituticnal action of G. D. Searle and Ccipany by arguing, at page 2 of

his reply, that the MSR document wes "preliminzrv and incarplete" since it
"did not contain anterortem data, text or results of statistical analyses
that are necessary for a finzl, camplete and full report of the study".

Tnis characterizaticn of Dr. Mawo's pathclogy findings is nonsense. A °
‘pathologist's role in a study is to recort examination of post-rortem’
lesions cnly; the contract pathologist revsr generatss anterortem data

- or statistical analyses; the M3R report did not contain these and neither
did the rerort from Dr. Willigan which was submitted to FDA. Wren a firm,
such’'as Searle, receives a report from an outside pathologist, the firm
itself provides the antemortem datz ard conducts statistical analysis. BEog
e ® furthar asserts that the MER repor: lacks ma eri2lity. This is not
tree. The docrant was cazable of and has influsncad the Agency in its
Gacision with respect to the labelirg of Aldactome and in limiting huwan

investigational studies,

Rt ¥aaalso claims icnorance of the MER resort until June 1975. Ee acnits
that he was awar= that Dr. Williczn rzd dizgnosed the slides from the 75-vesk
study, but insists that he was unaware of any prior involverent in the stusv
by Dr. MawofiBrated asserts that fEEZYEr] would not be exsected to
advise him of the results of patholegy enalysis cn a routine basis. With
certain minor exceptions, the r

Titd strongly asserts the corporaze theory that the findings of Dr.
: "so in error and so unreliztle that the entire report was deemed
Litrustivorthy”; that it was not a relevant past of the Searle Aldactone study,
and in substance that it never was recuired to be sutmitted to the FDA. '
ESESS=T3 305 Reply, page 2. [T =T assumes full responsibility

for concluding that the MER report was "Ifimczmenta2lly incapable of serving

as a velid, dafensible representation of the tumor éa+a from the rats study
involved" .peEe@p¥tll305 Reply, page 5. - Erewrsy claims he did not
discuss the cocument with his sweriors. FZuisefiTily 305 Reply, pace 7.
Nevertheless, at page 11 of his reply,kSz: S0 ,

person thit "intamma) Searle records show that BESSE ool recularly and -
candidly informed his superiors at G. D. Sezrle and Corpany of the toxicolcgical
status of company products, ircluding recommendations relating to procsdures
anc testing progrzus”. tnile k2 clairms hs discownted in toto +:2 MR

firdincs, Eriisar=ootjalso states, at pace 6 of his reply, that afte- Dr.
willican's findings were reperted he beczme concerned abcut himan test subjests,

' . 334
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Acocordingly, he discussed with Dr. Barnard M. t.a\...--, Professor of Patholegy
at Coluwmbia University in New York the "guestica of tumcrs in thyroid, testes
ad liver." (Our enphasis). ‘

C. R.S"‘O"ISJ.blll"V for False Statements in Perccris of Stu::.es On Aspartame,

The 305 Notice with respect to Asparimhe NEmeclas Pl tatrlare ooy They
were the authors of the reports that the FDA oeJ.ovs contam false information
and/or cnitted raterial facts. In our view, they are responsible for failing

to repcrt the substituted glucose veluss in the hznster study and are responsible
for any 4.a.lse stat "en_s or concealsd facts resulting ::cm having -drafted-Dr.
lhaisten's "pilot" ronkey stuly so that it would a;:-_:ez_ o be a valid, thorough
scientific study. Co : - s

X .

-

Grard Jury Investigeticn Into Cther Possikle Offensss

The IT: Task Feroe investigatad 25 studies invelving seven products. Its

report lists numercus incidances cof poor lazborstory rractices, ‘Tesulting

in cus-re:anues and inadacuacies in cata in ore cr tore of the investigaticnal -
-studies in support of each product. Scme of these poor laboratory practices
were charactarized by tha Task Forcs as "dsliterats cecisicns" ss=mingly

calclateld by Searle to minimize discovery ci <cxicity and/or to allay Foa

ncerm. Task Force Raport, pages 4-5. The Task Fczce report also discusses
ex=ples of poor laboratory practices in anir P_ studies submitted in susport

o Ly ym

Z the drug Flagyl, which were the sucbject of sgecial atiention at the

oL hn2

Ccngressional he=rings.

Tha Task Force repcrt and each repert of investicatizn for the 25 target
studies have besn reviewed by my office. Becausa tha law does not make
poor animal laboratery practices a punishz=ble o::aﬂg, mech of the
cues tionzble conduct by Searle ray rot fairly ke subisct to a2 characteri-

ticn, under the Act or Title 18, that will with reascrable probability
es‘-=~ll.m a violation befare a Judce or jury. Fcr tols reascn, the scope
of th2 2gency’s 305 Notice was far rore limitad than the findings of the
Task Force, whose investigation was designed rrimarily +o review laboratory
practices. Our selection of apparent violaticns for inclusion in the 305 Notice
éoes not, c>f c:urse, limit the incuiry of your oifice or by the Grand Jury

Q'xe of t.ne recn'.:'.er\catmns of the T?sk rorce was th.." He FDD. reccmend to

the Department of Justice that Grand Juzy proceedincs be instituted in the
Northern District of Illirnois using ccopulsory szocess in order to idantify
rore particularly the nature of the violaticns and © icentify 211 those
rescensible for such violaticns. Indss¢, there are zreas in which the

Task rcrce mves...'Lgag.m'z has rzisse¢ ser 'OLS cussticns that we believe vour
office should consicer Fob presantazicn beiore tre C:'a:-d Ju.rv, but which vere nc

includad in the 305 Netice primerily on th2 crowmd thzat the notice is dasigred
. ‘
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to give persons an opportunity to respond to ecparent vioclaticns of law
which the Agency, an the basis of available evidance, intends to recamrend
for prosecuticn. Tne extent to whicn evicance was available to the Task
For—e reflects the fact that inspecticns began thres months after the Task
Force was created; Searle knew it was going to be auvdited.

Four decisions or courses of cenduct bv Searle were specifically considered
by cur office for Grand Jury review. Tnese are set Forth in the memcrand
‘from.Arthur Levine to me 2ated August 6 and 30, 1975, ccpies of which have
previously been provided to the Consar Affairs Sscticn and to Mr. Brandirng.
Two of these arpe2r to us to be rezscrnzbly Iruitful aress for Grand Jury

investigation.

1. The Willigan report submitted to the Agency in March 1975 contzined a
corouter print-out summary table of tor findings which did rot incluge |
four melignant mammary tumors in tzeated femzles which had in fact been
diagnosed by Dr. Willigan and repcrted in his raw dzta, Searle explained

the cnission as the insdvertent eror of a2 progr=m=<T in the Mathematics~
Staristics Department who listsd the rammary tioers &s benign, although the
rew Gata sheets she was using as a reference stated that they were malignant.
Tresz errors were not detected, or at least not corr=cted, bv the supervisory
statistician in thzt departmant or by Dr. Stejskzl, the pathologist responcibie
for the study in the Pathology/Toricology Derarent. Thus the Searle regort,
based on the pathology exznination oI Dr. Willican contains, in part, false

dz%a,

All of the individuzls involved :In this episcée have bezen interviewed by the
FDA, and state, in essence, that they sinply mzde an error. The FDA investi-
gatory file does nct now contain information which vwould establish a williully
falss sutmission wder Title 18. Eowewver, the drug industry gsnerally and
Searle particularly was concerned abcut evicernce of rralignant mammary turors
in tes* animals (2x. 22). In order o accest tha Sa2irle explanation is to
believe that the unfavorable mammary ralignancy data were innccently cmitted
from the summary table four separatz times by three Zifferent individuals.

See August 6 memo., para. 2. _

2. With respect to the discreranciss between the sumission to FDA and the
wderlying raw data for the 80—weeX rat stucy on Flasyl, I concur in M-o
Ievine's suspicions that[TEDBorigEs was asked to repare for subission
to the Agency an animel study which was poorly ccntrolled and docurented,
and that he ray well have known that the study contaired inaccuracies cr at
least that the dat2 was incomolets and could not be confimmed, but did rot
reveal theses facts in the report of the stucy sutmitted to the FDA. See
August 6 memo., pages 11-13.
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Two other acticns by Searle, discussed in paregraons 3 and S of the August 6
memorandum and which are the subject of the 2Zugust 20 armended merorandi,

¢o not now appear to be fruitful matters for further investigation within
the ccatext of the Aldactone 78-week rat study. However, the general
inadequacy of Searle statistical and sampling rsthods was admitted by Dr.
Dutt, former head of ths Mathematics-Statistics Department. See Ex. 21.

The Grand Jury-'ray wish to investigate conseguences of thesa practices
which, wnlike the case with Aldactme, vere rot subsscuently remedied..
Moreover, Searle's thecretically conceiveble but in fact inapplicable
arqurents over the specific facts pertzining to Alézctcme demcnsirate a
willingness to raticnalize 'in oxder to avoid ac&mitting any errcr, even an
error which tums out to benefit their srodust cr fizther corrchorates their
procsdures. See August 30 memo., parz. 2. ' '

. Xa
Procedure
Tme issuzs discussed in this transtistal letter as wzll as thcée r2ised

by the Task Force rsport ars basec ocn rezcrts and sipportive documents
vhich amount to almcst 20,000 pages. The Task Force rexcrt, Mr. levine's
remorancéa of August 1975, and the MNotice of Hzzring focus thase data into
areas of potentizl criminal liability. It may rct be necessary that each
cocuent be reviewed by your cffice in order to develcp these ratters for
further investigaticn by the Grand Jury. Eowever, Mr. Levine of our office
(8-443-4360) and Mr. Carlton Sharp, a corcliance officzer in the Bureau of
Drugs and Chairman of the Searle Task Feroe (53-443-1%:0), both of whem are
intirately familiar with the facts of this case, would bes pleased to provide
any assistance in icentifying particulzr domzments in supoort of each charce
in the Tesk Force report, the August ramorandz, and the Notice of Eearing.

If you desire to review the exhibits and other sicnificant data, such initial
review might most efiiciently be conducted in Pockville, Maryland, where the
pertinent docurents, tocether with Messrs. leving, Sharp, and the other
rerbers of the Searle Task Force, are locatad. ‘e would also be pleased to
bring to Rockville, or to Chicago, at your recuest, the lead inspector for the
Task Force, Mr. Philip Brodsky, and any or all others of the investigatory
team. As issues are delineztad and screened, Messrs. Levine and Sharp would
be anvicus to came to Chicago for whatever time pecessary to continve’ E
discussicns and preparation for the Grand Jury investicatien.
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I a1so recuest that you consider egpointing Mr. Levine of our office a
sp=cial prosecutor fcr the purposz of aiding the Grand Jury. In view

of the breadth of the FDA investigation, the scientific matters raised,
ard the large volume of documents already assembled, his assistance
would be extremely valuable. Moreover, such a procedure would eliminate
any quasticn, wrether or not meritorious, that documents obtained by the
Grand Jury ray be shared only within the Departwent of Justice and not
with the Focd and Drug Afministration. ' L .

As I rentioned previously, Mr. Fred Branding of your office has been
kept Sully advised of all pertirent develcrments in this case. Many

of the attorneys in our oifice have had the privilege of working with
him in cases recamended by our office. In his conversations with Mr.
Ievine over the last ronths, he has expressed 2 strong interest in this
case and we.would warmly suport his desicnation as the attorney in your

ofiice respensible fer reviewing the matter and handling the presentasicn
to the Gmand Jury. '

2s ycu know, this cifice cooperatas clesely with the Consumer 2552i-s Ssctia
in the presecuticn of cases under the Act. A copy of this trensmittal lette
-has be=n sent to Mr. Robert McConzchie, Acting Chisf. We anticipate that

we will be azprissd of vour review of this tramsmits=) and we and the Coasuw
Rffairs Secticn will appreciate being kept advised of any develcpments. Mr.
Shaxp has already idantified many potential witnesses to support the rathole
and texdeology principles that underlie the charges in the 305 Notice and th:

Task Force report. o
We lock forward to hearing frum you following vour initial review of these
materials, and discussing with you a2 schedule. Zor future action on this
impcrzant and prececent-setting cas=.

Very trulyjyours,
,?'4'/: 7 .
ichard A. Marrill .
Chief Counsel
... Food and Drug Acministration

BEnclosures



